
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Please silence all electronic devices, as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 

 
 

 
7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
 

 
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 

 
No Ceremonial / Presentations 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT
This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest 
that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is 
recommended that speakers limit their comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no 
comments be made during this period on items on the Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the 
Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  
The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the 
Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not respond to public 
comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name.  Prior to 
addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to 
Council/Agency Board and appropriate staff. 
 
Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – March 18, 2014 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – March 27, 2014 
2-3 Approval – Street Closure / City Services – Pizza Festival 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
 LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBER 

429 “C” STREET 
April 1, 2014 



2-4 Approval – Street Closure – Lemoore Festa Parade on June 15, 2014 
2-5 Approval – Notice of Rejection – James Cutler 
2-6 Approval – Authorization to Bid – 2014 Slurry Seal Project 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 2014-2015 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application Submittal – 

Resolution 2014-08 (Holwell & KCDC) 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – Bid Award – Landscape Maintenance of Public 

Facilities Maintenance Districts (PFMD) and Lighting and Landscaping 
Maintenance Districts (LLMD) (Wlaschin) 

4-2 Report and Recommendation – Industrial Water Rater Study (Wlaschin) 
4-3 Report and Recommendation – Water Conservation Measures (Wlaschin) 
4-4 Report and Recommendation – Acceptance of Cinnamon Drive Canal Study Final 

Design Concept – Resolution 2014-09 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports 
6-2 City Council Requests 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

Council will immediately convene into closed session after hearing any public comment on Closed Session. 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION
This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4).  Based on the advice of the City Attorney, discussion in open session 
concerning these matters would prejudice the position of the City in this litigation.  The Mayor will give an additional 
oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council meeting. 

 

No Closed Session 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.3(a) public comments may be directed to the legislative body concerning any item 
contained on the agenda for this meeting before or during consideration of the item.  Those wishing to address Council on an item 
shall be limited to between 3-5 minutes and if a large group, the Mayor may request that individuals provide only new information 
not presented by another person. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In 
addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 



 
 

Tentative Future Agenda Items 
 
April 15th 
Lemoore PD K9 Unit – K9 Demo and K9 Retirement (Smith) 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I posted the 
above City Council/ Redevelopment Successor Agency Agenda for the meeting of April 1, 2014 at City Hall, 
119 Fox Street St., Lemoore, CA, on March 27, 2014. 
 
 
 
       //s//     
Mary J. Venegas 
City Clerk 
 



 1

ITEM 2-1 
 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

March 18, 2014 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 

 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Rodarmel; 
City Manager Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; Public Works/Planning Director 
Wlaschin; Finance Director Silva; Parks and Recreation Director Simons; 
Police Chief Smith; Project Manager Holwell; Executive Secretary/Housing 
Specialist Austin; City Clerk Venegas. 
 
Absent:  Council Member Neal 

 
PRESENTATION - EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: 

Police Officer Jonathan Moritz was named Employee of the 2nd Quarter 2013. 
 
Police Officer Kevin Cosper was named Employee of the 3rd Quarter 2013. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Jane Dart asked a general question about the credit cards on the warrant 
register.  A public records request was given to the City Clerk on the same 
item. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
Council Member Gordon requested that Item D be pulled from the Consent 
Calendar for separate consideration. 
 
Mayor Siegel requested that Item F be pulled from the Consent Calendar for 
separate consideration. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council approve the following Consent Calendar: 
 
A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – March 4, 2014 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – March 14, 2014 
C. Approval – Street Closure – 5K Run for RAINN on April 12, 2014 
E. Street Closure – Memorial Walk on May 22, 2014 
G. Approval – Notice of Completion – CMC Office Remodel PH 1-2 HVAC 
H. Approval – Authorization to Bid – 2014 Resurfacing Street Project 

 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 
 
 



 2

D. Approval – Street Closure – Downtown Farmers Market April 25 - October 
31, 2014 

 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that council approve item D of the Consent Calendar with 
the amendment that they be allowed to extend to E Street on Heinlen. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Wynne, Rodarmel, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 
 

F. Approval – Bid Award – Train Depot Paint Project 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that council approve item F of the Consent Calendar. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Appointment – Parks and Recreation Commission: 
Mayor Siegel, with the consensus of Council Members Gordon, Rodarmel and 
Wynne, appointed Brandy Laws to the Parks and Recreation Commission for a 
two year term expiring December 31, 2016. 

 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Agreement with Darden Architects for Assessment and 
Planning Services for Lemoore Police Department Dispatch Center Project: 

Parks and Recreation Director Simonson presented the report.  Based on the 
needs assessment, Darden will produce an opinion of probable costs for 
phase one work, including the construction cost, equipment cost, and opinion 
of probable time to complete the work.  The fee will not exceed $10,000. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an 
agreement with Darden Architects as outlined under the proposal. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 

 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Certificate of Acceptance / Resolution 2014-07 – Transfer 
of Governmental Purpose Properties: 

Project Manager Holwell presented the report indicating the Lemoore City 
Council as the Lemoore Successor Agency along with the Oversight Board 
determined that the acceptance of the parcels by the City would be in the best 
interest of the community. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Rodarmel, and carried that Council adopt Resolution 2014-07 approving the 
five Certificates of Acceptance for the six parcels identified in Exhibit A and 
authorize the City Manager of the City of Lemoore, or designee, to take such 
actions as are necessary and appropriate to implement the Resolution. 
 



 3

Ayes: Gordon, Rodarmel, Wynne, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Audited Financial Statements for the City, Municipal Golf 
Course, and the Single Audit Report: 

Finance Director Silva presented the report.  The independent auditor issued a 
qualified opinion for the City Audit, related to the general government capital 
assets and related depreciation schedule.  All other areas of the Financial 
Statements present fairly, in all material aspects, the financial position of the 
City. 
 
Fausto Hinoja, from Price Paige and Company, presented a summary of the 
key points of the Financial Statements and the Municipal Golf Course 
Financial Statements. 
 
Jose Giosa, also from Price Paige and Company, presented the single audit 
report. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne, and carried that Council accept the City Financial Statements, the 
Municipal Golf Course Financial Statements, and the Single Audit Report. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 

 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – Water Conservation Options: 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin presented the report.  A water 
conservation flyer will be distributed to all utility customers as well as all 
students within the Lemoore Elementary School District. 
 
A tiered level of severity will be brought back based on certain parameters 
which have yet to be determined.  Possible regulation through a tiered water 
system based on an average per person usage rate.  City Attorney Avedisian 
advised Council of the Prop 218 process associated with a potential water rate 
increase. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 
Rodarmel, and carried that Council approve the flyer for release to Lemoore 
residents and authorize staff to proceed with long term changes outlined. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Rodarmel, Wynne, Siegel 
Absent: Neal 

 
ADJOURN TO SUCCESSOR AGENCY: 

At 8:52 p.m. Council adjourned to the Successor Agency regarding the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. 
 

APPROVAL – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule – March 
14, 2014: 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member 



 4

Rodarmel, and carried that the Successor Agency Board approve the 
Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule – March 14, 2014. 
 
Ayes: Gordon, Rodarmel, Wynne, Siegel  
Absent: Neal 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
At 8:53 p.m. the Successor Agency adjourned to the Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

 

DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
Project Manager Holwell stated the Department of Finance has approved the 
Gary Burrows extension as well as the Long Range Property Management 
Plan.  The sale of the Bennett property has begun. 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson reminded everyone of the 15th 
Annual Lemoore Youth Golf Tournament on Friday, March 21st.  The event is 
at noon at the Lemoore Golf Course. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
Council Member Rodarmel stated there is a water resource rally tomorrow in 
Fresno at 9am at the Fresno City Hall.  If enough participants, it could make a 
difference.  The water rally today in Mendota was successful. 
 
Council Member Gordon stated Congressman David Valadao will be at the 
Lemoore Senior Center from 9-10am. 
 
Council Member Wynne thanked Finance Director Silva and staff for meeting 
with her about the audit.  
 
Mayor Siegel informed Council funding requests for Little League have been 
received.  If consider giving raises, also consider giving back to the 
community.  Announce possibility of non-profit funding for next fiscal year. 
 

CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
There was no comment. 
 

ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 
 At 9:03 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor 
negotiations, significant exposure to litigation and real property negotiations. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 9:32 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT: 
 There was no announcement. 
 
 
Approved the 1st day of April 2014. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 



 5

 
 
 
              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/27/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4211 − CITY COUNCIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21 02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL 5,321.64 .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB
9 /14 03/27/14 21 15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN 38.94 .00 COPIER/PRINTER
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 5,360.58 .00

TOTAL    CITY COUNCIL .00 5,360.58 .00

RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:23 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-2



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             702075562001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    106.88               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            106.88               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                539.60               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            539.60               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0000153584   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 65.63               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00             65.63               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                341.18               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             000005229029 5516 AT&T                             28.68               .00 559−924−9003             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 29.42               .00 02/05−03/04              
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            399.28               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 36.53               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                776.66               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            813.19               .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER                                            .00          1,924.58               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:23                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 86.66               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0021967−IN   1610 HINDERLITER, DE                 977.74               .00 PROF SRVCS/ 1ST QTR      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             66641        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 18.00               .00 DRUG TESTING             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,082.40               .00

4315     INSURANCE/BONDS          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             RMA2013−0561 0123 CSJVRMA                      39,635.00               .00 LIABILITY PRGM/4TH QT    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             RMA2013−0561 0123 CSJVRMA                      79,336.00               .00 WORKERS COMP/4TH QT      
TOTAL    INSURANCE/BONDS                                         .00        118,971.00               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0000153584   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 65.63               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00             65.63               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                126.85               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             000005229029 5516 AT&T                             17.93               .00 559−924−9003             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            144.78               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                201.28               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                143.03               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            344.31               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00        120,608.12               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:23                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             21138500     0091 CARROT−TOP INDUS                338.72               .00 6−CA FLAGS               
9 /14 03/27/14 21             2877−438046  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                142.78               .00 FLOOR LAMP/BALLAST       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             2877−438024  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                 75.79               .00 FLOOR LAMP               
9 /14 03/27/14 21             694384485001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    132.74               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES          
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            690.03               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03252014     T1502 SANTOS MAYA                    224.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     T1595 HANNSSELTHILL CA                30.00               .00 WEEKEND RENTAL ATTEND    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             32B1406−IN   6309 SOCIAL VOCATIONA              4,500.00               .00 FEB JANITORIAL SRVCS     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                226.00               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             1230178      5287 RES COM PEST CON                 38.00               .00 411 WEST D ST            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6283 ERIK SURWILL                    792.00               .00 REC CENTER CLEANING      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15158        T909 ASSOCIATED SOILS              1,227.28               .00 FEBRUARY PROF SRVCS      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          7,037.28               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 45.30               .00 02/05−03/04              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 20.79               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 20.79               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            137.96               .00

4340S    STREETS−UTILITIES        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             MAR678006815 0363 P G & E                          84.64               .00 02/13/2014−03/14/2014    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             MAR360627227 0363 P G & E                       6,360.01               .00 02/2014−03/2014          
TOTAL    STREETS−UTILITIES                                       .00          6,444.65               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             2727         5849 BURGOS AIR CONDI                356.53               .00 AC REPAIR/SERVICE        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             2742         5849 BURGOS AIR CONDI                931.67               .00 REPAIR AC/FIREHOUSE      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             99886        6379 STAN VIERRA ELEC                429.00               .00 ELECTRIC/SUB STATION     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,717.20               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  4.06               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 15.76               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             19.82               .00

4850     ASSET REPLACEMENT        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0078−9       2983 FRAZEE PAINT & W                814.43               .00 CIP 16−VETS HALL         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             4887         1216 C.B.S. DOORS                  2,265.36               .00 CIP 16−DOORS             
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6765    −01 44539        1262 ROBINSON’S INTER              2,919.70         −2,919.70 TILE                     
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6765    −02 44539        1262 ROBINSON’S INTER                144.00           −144.09 ADHESIVE                 
TOTAL    ASSET REPLACEMENT                                       .00          6,143.49         −3,063.79

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:23                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4850     ASSET REPLACEMENT        
TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         22,190.43         −3,063.79

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:23                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             4315         3010 THE ANIMAL HOUSE                 75.20               .00 DOG FOOD                 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             282548       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                716.25               .00 COLOR PRINTER            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            791.45               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                 86.15               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             14−005       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                681.17               .00 BCKGRND INVESTIGATION    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             14−004       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                821.71               .00 BCKGRND INVESTIGATION    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             14−006       6135 J & J INVESTIGAT                642.95               .00 BCKGRND INVESTIGATION    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             001−001200   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              13,902.61               .00 DISPATCH SERVICE         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03132014     0057 RICHARD A BLAK,                 350.00               .00 PRE−EMPLOY PSYCH TEST    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9403352657   5352 SHRED−IT USA− FR                132.13               .00 SHREDDING SERVICE        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         16,616.72               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             10299028−29  0719 FRESNO CITY COLL                 57.00               .00 REGISTRATION/M.JOHNS     
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             57.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9720975145   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                992.80               .00 02/02−03/01              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                968.74               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                527.68               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          2,489.22               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03182014     4023 TRACY LANDRUS                    42.00               .00 PER DIEM/T.LANDRUS       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03182014     6075 CITY OF FRESNO P                473.00               .00 TUITION/T.LANDRUS        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6341 MICHAEL JOHNS                    70.00               .00 PER DIEM/M.JOHNS         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     2030 MARGARITA OCHOA               3,000.00               .00 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6089 JONATHAN MORITZ                  70.00               .00 PER DIEM/J.MORITZ        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6089 JONATHAN MORITZ                  42.00               .00 PER DIEM/J.MORITZ        
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00          3,697.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                137.00               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             248815086    5842 U.S.  BANCORP EQ                168.16               .00 PD PRINTERS              
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            305.16               .00

4825AR   MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             118279       6374 COOK’S COMMUNICA              1,741.12               .00 LIGHTS/RADIO P34         
TOTAL    MACH/EQUIP ASSET REPLACE                                .00          1,741.12               .00

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00         25,697.67               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             5547         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                 18.47               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             18.47               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             57189        2161 CASCADE FIRE                  1,030.75               .00 COUPLING HOSE            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             1204         6123 VALLEY ELECTRIC                  11.35               .00 INSTALL NEW BREAKER      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,042.10               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             001−001200   5814 CITY OF HANFORD              10,426.95               .00 DISPATCH SERVICE         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,426.95               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                113.73               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  8.53               .00 02/05−03/04              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 36.40               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            158.66               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             1204         6123 VALLEY ELECTRIC                  30.00               .00 INSTALL NEW BREAKER      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             1202         6123 VALLEY ELECTRIC                  60.00               .00 INSTALL CHARGER/F11      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00             90.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 75.93               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  4.74               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             80.67               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         11,816.85               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8985         6378 CALIFORNIA BUILD                 75.00               .00 WEBSITE JOB AD           
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00             75.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  8.81               .00 02/05−03/04              
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              8.81               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                122.20               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  5.07               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            127.27               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00            211.08               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             18016        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                 69.88               .00 PLANNING COMM PLAQUE     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             69.88               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL              1,419.00               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,419.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 69.98               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 66.34               .00 02/05−03/04              
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            136.32               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.35               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.35               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 90.00               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 72.39               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            165.09               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00          1,790.29               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             1037         6298 GO FOR IT EVENTS                750.00               .00 SHMRCK SHFFLE/TIMING     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             5988         5829 JONES BOYS LLC                1,704.95               .00 SHMRCK SHFFLE/SHIRTS     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             5535         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                  6.45               .00 DUPLICATE KEYS           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             698657363001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    386.97               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             698661581001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    128.99               .00 INK                      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             17988        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                131.04               .00 SHMRCK SHFFLE TRPHIES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             17986        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                220.38               .00 SOCCER TROPHIES          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             17987        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                122.44               .00 BOXING TROPHIES          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             17997        2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                 16.13               .00 VOLUNTEER TROPHIES       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          3,467.35               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6229 TARA RODRIGUEZ                  213.50               .00 KINDERMUSIK−MAR 14       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6257 RYAN ROCHA                    8,147.00               .00 CROSSFIT−MAR 2014        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             MARCH2014    5614 CHRISTINA DE LA                 210.00               .00 ZUMBA−MAR 2014           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             MARCH2014    5962 JASON GLASPIE                   388.60               .00 BOXING−MAR 2014          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03262014     5235 STATE DISBURSEME                388.60               .00 MAR CHILD SUPPORT        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     T1329 JENNIFER SHELDON               119.00               .00 PEE WEE FIT/PAINT−MAR    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     T1328 DENISE TAYLOR                   70.00               .00 HORSEBACK−MAR 14         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6322 MELANIE TATCO                   119.00               .00 KIDS ZUMBA/MAR           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6371 MANUEL VELARDE                  140.00               .00 KARATE/MARCH             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03242014     6280 CASEY VENEMA                    231.00               .00 DRAMA/MARCH              
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         10,026.70               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 96.23               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 55.30               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                129.65               .00 02/05−03/04              
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            281.18               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 36.53               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                509.39               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            545.92               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00         14,321.15               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        203,920.75         −3,063.79

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726C − PD SLESF FUNDS           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             269014       6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              1,500.00               .00 DISPATCH CENTER/FEB      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             269015       6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              1,500.00               .00 DISPATCH CENTER/MAR      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             269022       6377 THE CRISCOM COMP              1,500.00               .00 DISPATCH CENTER/APR      
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          4,500.00               .00

TOTAL    PD SLESF FUNDS                                          .00          4,500.00               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726F − OUTDOOR FLEET MAINT FACIL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02           6319 MARKO CONSTRUCTI             35,625.00               .00 CNG MAINT PROJ           
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00         35,625.00               .00

TOTAL    OUTDOOR FLEET MAINT FACIL                               .00         35,625.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00         40,125.00               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:24                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             164735       0910 SNAP ON TOOLS                 1,073.93               .00 COMP  PROG UPDATES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9386468160   0521 GRAINGER                        415.79               .00 STEEL STRAPPING          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 10.84               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             CALEM10958   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                436.45               .00 TIRE RACK                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             50015267     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                 90.95               .00 WIRE ASY                 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3918−185379  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                 50.01               .00 FLEET RUNNER             
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,077.97               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
9 /14 03/27/14 21             315142       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             11,194.66               .00 CARDLOCK STATEMENT       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00         11,194.66               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             4−237622     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                 243.71               .00 3−BATTERIES              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             F642919      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                242.91               .00 SEAT BELT /FREIGHT       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             F643119      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                315.08               .00 EXHAUST PIPE             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             F643055      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                150.74               .00 SENSOR/MODULE/JUMPER     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             F642835      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET               −676.41               .00 RETURN/CORE              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3086         5615 SAUNDERS AUTOMAT                 68.92               .00 SWITCH                   
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3078         5615 SAUNDERS AUTOMAT                 63.02               .00 KIT FILTER               
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3918−185381  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                −10.00               .00 ALTERNATOR RETURN        
9 /14 03/27/14 21             38115        0286 LAWRENCE TRACTOR                 46.91               .00 AIR FILTER/SPARK PLUG    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             35738        0634 TERMINAL AIR BRA                  9.00               .00 STOCKS                   
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3918−185970  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                 13.96               .00 CONNECTOR KIT            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3918−185969  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                 13.96               .00 CONNECTOR KIT            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             3918−186075  6120 O’REILLY AUTO PA                 28.72               .00 TAIL LAMP                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             4−238723     1908 BATTERY SYSTEMS                  76.72               .00 BATTERY                  
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −01 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION               1,385.00         −1,375.00 BUMPER/HOSE BED          
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −02 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION                 118.40           −118.40 PAINT                    
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −03 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION                    .00               .00 FENDER DECALS            
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −04 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION                  65.00            −65.00 WHEEL ALIGNMENT          
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −05 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION                   3.00             −3.00 WASTE DISPOSAL           
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −06 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION               1,342.00         −1,342.00 LABOR                    
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6764    −07 4774*        2956 JONES COLLISION                 530.88           −530.88 SALES TAX                
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          4,031.52         −3,434.28

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                  8.37               .00 02/05−03/04              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             59.45               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             808          6129 LEMOORE POWDER C                160.00               .00 BLAST&COAT/BRACKETS      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             806          6129 LEMOORE POWDER C                135.00               .00 BLAST&COAT/BED RAILS     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            295.00               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         17,658.60         −3,434.28

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         17,658.60         −3,434.28

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             02282014     5609 LOZANO SMITH, LL                105.00               .00 PROF SERVICES/FEB        
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            105.00               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00            105.00               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00            105.00               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             FO795332     6058 UNIVAR                          914.96               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE,FUEL     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             FO795335     6058 UNIVAR                        1,056.42               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE, FUEL    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             FO795336     6058 UNIVAR                        1,829.91               .00 SODIUM,MILL FEE, FUEL    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             FO794875     6058 UNIVAR                        1,709.96               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             FO794873     6058 UNIVAR                        1,971.36               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          7,482.61               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             001−001200   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICE         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,475.65               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722279       2160 FRANK HERNANDEZ                  30.00               .00 VCWA/F.HERNANDEZ         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722283       T1477 VICTOR GONZALEZ                 30.00               .00 VCWA/V.GONZALEZ          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722274       T1639 JERAMY CLIMER                   30.00               .00 VCWA/J.CLIMER            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722275       T1674 ALBERTO CAMACHO                 30.00               .00 VCWA/A.CAMACHO           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722280       T737 PHILIP OCHOA                     30.00               .00 VCWA/P.OCHOA             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722284       2007 RICHARD PEREIRA                  30.00               .00 VCWA/R.PEREIRA           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             722281       T913 JAMES WEISER                     30.00               .00 VCWA/J.WEISER            
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00            210.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 89.74               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 89.74               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 21.99               .00 02/05−03/04              
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            252.55               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −01 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              6,304.00         −6,304.00 BOWL ASSY                
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −02 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              1,303.40         −1,303.40 COLUMN PIPE              
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −03 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              1,103.90         −1,103.90 FLOWAY TUBE/SHAFT        
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −04 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                 51.87            −51.87 SPIDERS                  
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −05 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              1,955.10         −1,955.10 COLUMN PIPE              
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −06 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                200.00           −200.00 LOT MISC                 
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −07 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              2,453.40         −2,453.40 LABOR/PULL PUMP          
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −08 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                825.00           −825.00 LABOR/BAIL OIL           
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −09 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                700.00           −700.00 SUBCONTRACT/WELL VIDEO   
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −10 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              1,248.00         −1,248.00 SHOP LABOR               
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −11 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP              3,960.00         −3,960.00 EST LABOR/REINSTALL      
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −12 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                200.00           −200.00 LBAOR/TEST PUMP          
9 /14 03/27/14 21 6757    −13 19607        0641 GLEIM−CROWN PUMP                818.87           −818.87 SALES TAX                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             382,322      0227 INGRAM DIGITAL E                289.69               .00 POWER SERVICE SWITCH     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             382,321      0227 INGRAM DIGITAL E              1,084.34               .00 TRNING PANEL INSTALL     
9 /14 03/27/14 21             382,322      5372 FRANCHISE TAX BO                 96.56               .00 GARNISHMENT              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             382,321      5372 FRANCHISE TAX BO                361.45               .00 GARNISHMENT              

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES     (cont’d)
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00         22,955.58        −21,123.54

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                120.21               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 15.90               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            136.11               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         34,512.50        −21,123.54

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             66641        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 18.00               .00 DRUG TESTING             
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             18.00               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
9 /14 03/27/14 21             17039        2365 SPECTRUM BUSINES                774.00               .00 DOOR HANGERS             
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00            774.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             000005229029 5516 AT&T                             13.15               .00 559−924−9003             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                126.85               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            140.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                140.25               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 32.81               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            173.06               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          1,105.06               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         35,617.56        −21,123.54

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             66641        6115 EMPLOYEE RELATIO                 36.00               .00 DRUG TESTING             
9 /14 03/27/14 21             001−001200   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICE         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,511.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 51.31               .00 02/05−03/04              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            102.39               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.69               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 52.85               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             54.54               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,668.58               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00          3,668.58               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             2877−437825  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                231.60               .00 ELECTRICAL CORD          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             CALEM10970   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 74.52               .00 HEAT SHRINK TUB          
9 /14 03/27/14 21             692056       6049 UNISAFE INC.                    489.25               .00 EXAM GLOVES              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             507860803071 6266 SPARKLETTS                       87.00               .00 5G DISTILLED WATER       
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            882.37               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             03192014     T885 ROBIN PLUEARD                    70.00               .00 REIMBURSE/CLASS B LIC    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             001−001200   5814 CITY OF HANFORD               3,475.65               .00 DISPATCH SERVICE         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,545.65               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                122.55               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             9721264839   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                 34.89               .00 02/05−03/04              
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 51.08               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             70013MAR14   1207 NOS COMMUNICATIO                 68.81               .00 COMM SERVICES            
9 /14 03/27/14 21             MAR489007642 0363 P G & E                      31,597.21               .00 01/14/2014−02/12/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         31,874.54               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
9 /14 03/27/14 21             5425671      0242 JORGENSEN COMPAN                100.00               .00 EXTNGSHER CALIBRATION    
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            100.00               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 81.58               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.01               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             82.59               .00

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00         36,485.15               .00

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00         36,485.15               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 074 − PARKS & RECREATION CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4730E − INSULATION & HVAC        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0000153269   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 56.62               .00 CIP 4−PUBLIC NOTICE      
9 /14 03/27/14 21             0000153270   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 51.91               .00 CIP 4−PUBLIC NOTICE      
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00            108.53               .00

TOTAL    INSULATION & HVAC                                       .00            108.53               .00

TOTAL    PARKS & RECREATION CAP                                  .00            108.53               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4800 − LLMD−UNALLOCATED         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             8802614−MR14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                   .68               .00 POSTAGE/3RD QTR          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00               .68               .00

TOTAL    LLMD−UNALLOCATED                                        .00               .68               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                 12.50               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             12.50               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00             12.50               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00             13.18               .00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 14:26:21                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
9 /14 03/27/14 21             15045954     5977 GREATAMERICA FIN                   .32               .00 COPIER/PRINTER           
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00               .32               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00               .32               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00               .32               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00        337,702.67        −27,621.61

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:25                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:27:50                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’1011’ and ’2021’AND transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

1550     PREPAID EXPENSE          
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                   22,634.07                    VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    PREPAID EXPENSE                                                 22,634.07               .00

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              3022 FIRST BANKCARD                                     22,634.07  VISA BANK CARD           
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00         22,634.07

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                    22,634.07         22,634.07

TOTAL REPORT                                                             22,634.07         22,634.07

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:27:51                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 14:27:28                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              0846 LEMOORE GOLF COURSE                                 3,409.00  YOUTH GOLF TOURN.        
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              0846 LEMOORE GOLF COURSE                                    44.00  GOLF TOURN/NOODLES       
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                                      215.00  GOLF TROPHIES            
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          3,668.00

2295     TEEN CENTER DONATIONS    
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              0846 LEMOORE GOLF COURSE               3,409.00                    YOUTH GOLF TOURN.        
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              0846 LEMOORE GOLF COURSE                  44.00                    GOLF TOURN/NOODLES       
   9 /14 03/27/14  21              2045 BUDDY’S TROPHIES                    215.00                    GOLF TROPHIES            
TOTAL    TEEN CENTER DONATIONS                                            3,668.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     3,668.00          3,668.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                              3,668.00          3,668.00

         RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:27:28                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 03/27/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 14:26:52                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.batch=’AC0401’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  9/14

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL  
   9 /14 03/27/14 21 0        7475         T1822 RACHEL GARZA                  −250.00                   REFUND/R.GARZA           
   9 /14 03/27/14 21 0        03252014     T1821 ZULEMA ZAVALA                 −250.00                   REFUND/Z.ZAVALA          
   9 /14 03/27/14 21 0        11051        T950 LINCOLN MILITARY                −60.00                   REFUND/LINCOLN           
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           −560.00               .00

3685     PARK RESERVATION         
   9 /14 03/27/14 21 0        03242014     T1823 MARC RAYGOZA                   −40.00                   REFUND/M.RAYGOZA         
TOTAL    PARK RESERVATION                                        .00            −40.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −600.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00           −600.00               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00           −600.00               .00

                   RUN DATE 03/27/2014 TIME 14:26:52  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



Item 2-3





“In God We Trust” 

 
Mayor 

William Siegel  Police 
Department 

 
657 Fox Street 

Lemoore, CA  93245 
Phone (559) 924-9574 
FAX (559) 924-3116 

 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

                            City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM NO. 2-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Steve Rossi, Commander  

Date: March 24, 2014  

Subject: Lemoore Festa Parade  

 
Discussion: 
 
Dan LeRoy, the Facilities Manger for the Lemoore Trinity Association, submitted a written 
request for street closures as well as police officers to assist with the annual Portuguese Festa 
Parade, which will be on Sunday, June 15, 2014 at 11:00 a.m. He is proposing that the parade 
start at Saint Peter's Catholic Church (870 N. Lemoore Avenue) and end at the Lemoore Trinity 
Association (470 Champion Street). The proposed route is as follows: 
 

1 – Saint Peter's Church south on Bella Madre to E. Cinnamon Drive 
2 – E. Cinnamon Drive west to Follett Street (crossing N. Lemoore Avenue) 
3 – Follett Street south to W. Bush Street 
4 – W. Bush Street west to Champion Street 
5 – Champion Street south to the dead end of Champion Street (470 Champion Street) 

 
The Trinity is requesting that four police officers be assigned to the parade to handle the traffic 
control during the parade, especially at the intersections. Traffic will only be affected while the 
parade is in progress. Once the parade passes a street or intersection then traffic will resume as 
normal in that area so there is not a need for any street closure signage. 
 
For the past two years this request has been made and approved by the City Council. The 
police department has provided four police officers on overtime, which has been reimbursed by 
the Lemoore Trinity Association, as well as Volunteers in Policing to handle the traffic control. 
Streets were only closed during the parade and it was not posted with "No Parking" signs so no 
vehicles have been towed. This procedure has worked and seems to have the least 
inconvenience to the motoring public while still providing safety for those participating in the 
parade, the VIPs, and the officers. In his request, Mr. LeRoy wrote that the Lemoore Trinity 
Association will assume the extra expenses incurred by the Lemoore Police Department. I 
spoke to Mr. LeRoy and confirmed his desire to do this the same as the past two years. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
None.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Lemoore City Council, by motion, approve the street closure as requested for the Festa 
Parade on June 15, 2014. 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Janie Venegas, Administrative Secretary / City Clerk 

Date: March 27, 2014  

Subject: Claim for James Cutler  

 
Discussion: 
 
AIMS has suggested the City issue a Notice of Rejection Under Operation of Law in 
order to establish a six month civil status. 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Unknown at this time. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the Notice of Rejection for James Cutler. 









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Maintenance &     
Fleet Divisions 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore * CA 93245 

Phone *(559) 924-6739 
FAX * (559) 924-6808 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 2-6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: March 26, 2014  

Subject: Authorization to Bid 2014 Slurry Seal Project  

 
 
Discussion: 
 
Staff would like to request authorization to request bids for the Capital Improvement 
2014 Street Slurry Seal Project.  The project will encompass approximately 40,948 sq ft. 
of various streets throughout the City (map enclosed). 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
The Capital Improvement Slurry Seal project is estimated to expend no more than 
$219,000 including engineering from TE/STP Exchange Fund 027 - 4727C.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, authorize staff to go out to bid for the 2014 Slurry Seal 
Project, as per proposed. 
 
 
 



O 5110 W. Cypress Ave.     Tel: 559.733.0440
Visalia, CA 93278            Fax: 559.733.7821

STATE HIGHWAY 198

CA
RM

EL
 D

R

PA
R A

VE
NU

E

KEVIN CT

MADRID CT

EL
M 

DR

19
TH

 AV
E

MA
DR

ID
 D

R

TO
MM

Y C
IR

BEACH LN

BA
RC

EL
ON

A 
DR

BISCAY ST

WA
RR

EN
 D

R

SE
MI

NO
LE

 W
Y

AU
GU

ST
A A

VE

EAGLE ST CHRISTINE LN

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

OAKDALE LN

VIN
E 

ST

CO
NT

EN
TA

 C
T

AC
AC

IA 
DR

LAKE DR

LIN
DA

 LN

MARIN DR

BY
RO

N 
DR

LE
MO

OR
E A

VE

ACACIA CT

BUSH ST

LUM DR

ANDY CT

WARREN DR

BO
DE

GA
 AV

E

NAPLES ST

STATE HIGHWAY 198

VIS
TA

 C
T

ORANGEWOOD DR

PA
RA

DI
SE

 D
RI

VE

CAPITOLA CT

CHERRY LN

GOLF LINKS DR

FA
RA

LL
EN

 LN

ATLANTIC AVE

CO
TT

ON
W

OO
D 

LN

OTERO ST

CH
AM

PI
ON

 ST

19
TH

 AV
E

MO
NT

EC
ITO

 C
T

CA
MB

RI
A 

CT

GOLF AVENUE

FA
IR

VI
EW

 D
R

AC
AC

IA
 D

R

VIN
E 

CT

BL
UE

 JA
Y A

VE

MA
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

SPYGLASS DR

NATIONAL DR

WE
ST

GA
TE

 PL

BY
RO

N 
DR

HI
CK

OR
Y D

R

HA
ML

ET
 S

T

BR
OO

KS
 D

R

PH
ILA

N 
ST

AL
DE

R 
DR

BL
AK

EL
EY

 D
R

SKAGGS ST

LARISH ST

TOOMEY ST

CABRILLO ST

OAKDALE LN

STINSON DR

SAN SIMEON DR

TAMMY LN

BUSH ST

CEDAR LN

18
TH

 AV
E

ASH ST
ASPEN LN

CEDAR LN

SO
NO

MA
 AV

E

CA
MB

RI
DG

E 
DR

REDWOOD LN

VIN
E 

ST

S O
LIV

E S
T

IONA AVE

REDWOOD LN

BIG SUR DR

18
TH

 AV
E

MORRO LN

ENTERPRISE DR

SILVERADO AVE

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

IONA AVE

LOMBARDY LN

CH
AM

PI
ON

 ST

19
-1/

2 T
H 

AV
E

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping, Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Lemoore Pavement Management
City of Lemoore, CA

1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

Notice:
This map contains data described above. This map is preliminary and subject to 
change; please use at your own discretion.  Quad Knopf disclaims any responsibility 
from the subsequent use of this preliminary map.

2014 Slurry Project

LEGEND:
2013-2014 Planned Maintenance Areas/Type

Slurry Seal

Path: \\VS-FS-01\projects\Projects\2014\L140052 - Slurry\GIS\Slurry2014_v1.mxd

Date: 3/24/2014



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Office of the
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6704 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 

Date: March 24, 2014  

Subject: 2014-2015 Community Development Block Grant Application 
Submittal Public Hearing and Adoption of Resolution No. 2014-08 
 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
Scheduled for Tuesday night’s Council meeting is the second required public hearing for 
the State of California Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program grant 
submittal.  On February 18, 2014, Council held a Design Phase hearing on potential 
CDBG activities to be applied for through the 2014 Notice of Funding Availability 
(NOFA).  At the hearing, the public was informed that applications are due to the State 
no later than April 11 at 5:00 p.m.  During the Design Phase hearing, Council directed 
staff to focus on the following four grant activities:  
 

1. A Public Facilities Rehabilitation grant at 789 South Lemoore Avenue for the 
Lemoore Senior Citizens, Inc. a nonprofit organization designed to serve seniors 
62 years of age and over 

2. A Public Service grant to aid the Lemoore Senior Center with its lunch program 
at the address listed above  

3. A Public Service grant to provide the Lemoore Senior Center with a full-time 
individual to handle the facility’s management for the address listed above 

4. A Public Service grant to provide the Lemoore Senior Center with a full-time 
individual to handle the facility’s maintenance for the address listed above 
 

The four activities listed above meet the national objective of primarily benefiting low- 
and moderate- income seniors aged 62 and over.  There will be no displacement of 
individuals for any of the activities.  The total amount requested in all grants combined is 
$1,902,066, which includes $132,702 for General Administration.  The above identified 
activities are described in greater detail below: 



“In God We Trust” 

1) For the rehabilitation of the Lemoore Senior Center, a prevailing wage cost 
estimate was formulated using a report requested by the City in 2013.  That 
report was compiled in 2013 by Naffa International and an additional report was 
created by Chevron Energy Solutions at the same time.  Information was also 
gained by direct dialogue with Lemoore Senior Citizens, Inc.  The purpose for the 
rehabilitation is to repair damage due to age, to bring buildings up to code to 
meet health and safety standards, to provide for ongoing monitoring of the 
buildings, and to find ongoing, long-term cost savings through energy 
efficiencies.  The rehabilitation of the buildings includes: 
 

 Replace Fire Sprinklers - Ansul systems - Fire Valve - Alarms  
 ADA upgrade to restrooms 
 Remove damaged ceiling popcorn-sheetrock 
 Tie-into existing walls/repaint interior walls 
 Termite tenting to address dry wood termites 
 Remove/Replace damaged wood (rough & finish framing and siding) 
 Remove/Replace tile & comp. roof, add insulation board 
 Remove/Repair/Replace Stucco exterior as needed 
 Install R-36 insulation above new ceiling 
 Retrofit interior and exterior lighting  
 Replace inefficient HVAC units  
 Add solar system over parking  
 Remove/Replace single pane windows & doors with gaps 
 Replace HVAC ducting as needed 
 Fill in holes and other exterior grading issues 
 Repair/Replace old surveillance equipment and service 
 Remove/Replace old pilot light ovens and ranges in kitchens 
 Remove/Replace old shelving in kitchen w/metal shelving 
 Re-plumb kitchen drains & grease trap 
 Repair/Replace equipment inside of walk-in freezers 
 Cut out and insert new entrance/exit doors at storage buildings 

 
It is estimated that the senior center may save as much as $19,000/year in electricity 
costs if the grant is awarded and the preceding items are completed.  This portion of the 
application accounted for $1,178,896 in construction costs, and $141,468 in Activity 
Delivery costs.  Construction is expected to conclude some time prior to April 30, 2016. 
 
2) The Public Service grant to help seniors pay for food will bring down the cost from 
$5.00 per meal to $2.00 per meal and will expand the program from Monday through 
Thursday to include Friday.  The activity amount applied for is $51,000 and is expected 
to last for approximately 2 years.  There is no Activity Delivery cost attributable to this 
portion of the grant. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
3) The Public Service grant to hire a facility manager for the senior center will provide a 
full-time individual to the center that can research and apply for grants, create 
fundraisers and outreach programs, and aid in the day-to-day operations of the center, 
all with the intimate knowledge necessary to have a thriving senior center.  The activity 
amount applied for is $225,000. It is anticipated that this is enough to hire an individual 
for as much as 2 years.  There is no Activity Delivery cost attributable to this portion of 
the grant. 
 
4) The Public Service grant to hire a full-time facility maintenance person is for 
$137,000.  Recruiting a valuable candidate for the position will secure the center with 
safe, quality beautification and maintenance while ensuring preventative measures are 
put in place and regularly monitored.  Included in the amount listed above is the 
purchase of equipment, including a lawnmower.  If funded, the amount requested is 
expected to fund the position for approximately 2 years.  There is no Activity Delivery 
cost attributable to this portion of the grant. 
 
The City is required to report 1) the activities listed in the application, 2) the dollar 
amount of the application, and 3) a relocation plan, if any residents will be relocated as 
a result of the proposed activities.  Additionally, for this Application Submittal hearing, 
we are asked to cover the same items as were listed for the Design Phase hearing.   
 
The following information was reported:  The total amount of CDBG funds available for 
this 2014-2015 NOFA is approximately $28,540,278.  Applicants are restricted to 
submitting only one grant application totaling not more than $2,000,000; however, the 
application may include up to three activities.  The NOFA applies only to eligible CDBG 
activities and the maximum award limits for each activity are as follows: 
 

 Economic Development Activities:  A maximum of $300,000 for either Business 
Assistance or Microenterprise or up to $500,000 for a combination of both 

 
 Housing Activities:  A maximum of $1,000,000 for one program and one project 

 
 Public Improvements Activities:  A maximum of $1,500,000 for one project 

 
 Public Facilities Activities:  A maximum of $1,500,000 for one project 

 
 Public Service Activities:  A maximum of $500,000 for up to three services 

 
 Planning (PTA) Activities:  A maximum of $100,000 for up to two studies 

 
All of the activities must meet at least one of the three National Objectives, which are 
listed below.  Each objective is designed to document that households benefiting from 
the CDBG eligible activities are at or below the State’s annual published limits of eighty 
percent (80%) or less of county median income, adjusted for family size.   
 



“In God We Trust” 

The National Objectives are: 
 

1. Benefit to low- and moderate-income persons; or, 
2. Prevention or elimination of slums or blight, which is only allowed for Economic 

Development Activities; or, 
3. Urgent Need, which is not eligible under this NOFA 

 
Applications for the 2014-2015 funding cycle will be scored based on Need, Readiness, 
Jurisdictional Capacity/Past Performance and State Objectives.  Alejandro Clark of 
Kings Community Development Corporation (KCDC) will be present during the Public 
Hearing and can answer any questions you may have regarding this Application 
Submittal.  At the conclusion of the public hearing, Council should adopt Resolution No. 
2014-08, which authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to submit the grant 
application to the State.  
 
Budget Impact: 
 
If awarded, the City would receive funding in the amount of $1,902,066 for the above 
listed grant activities.  This grant does not require matching funds. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that Council, by motion: 
 
1) Request that the public sign the public participation sign-in sheet, which is a 
requirement of the application process. 
 
2) Open a Public Hearing to accept testimony regarding the 2014-2015 Application 
Submittal to the State of California CDBG Program. 
 
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2014-08, which authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, 
to submit the Application Submittal to the State of California CDBG Program requesting 
up to $1,902,066 for the grant activities listed benefiting the Lemoore Senior Center and 
senior citizens. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-08 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING AND THE EXECUTION OF A 
GRANT AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO FROM THE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
(CDBG) PROGRAM 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and 

held on April 1, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member 
_________________, seconded by Council Member __________________ and carried 
that the following Resolution be adopted: 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 18, 2014, the City Council of the City of Lemoore held a 
duly noticed Design Phase Public Hearing for the State of California Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program, accepted public testimony, and directed staff 
to prepare a grant application based on the outcome of the meeting; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Lemoore Senior Citizens, Inc. have ask for the City to file for grant 
funds to rehabilitate and upgrade the Senior Center, as generally shown in the grant 
application, in the dollar amounts listed below and will enter into a Sub-recipient 
Agreement with the City should a grant be awarded as required by the CDBG Program; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemoore held a duly noticed Public 
Hearing on the Application Submittal on April 1, 2014 for three (3) grant activities that meet 
the National Objectives of the CDBG Program. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
as follows: 

 
SECTION 1: 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore has reviewed and hereby approves an application 
for up to $2 million for the following activities: 

 General Program Administration $132,702.00 
 Activities Delivery $141,468.00 
 Public Facilities Rehabilitation – Senior Center $1,178,896.00 
 Program Income – Rehabilitation $0.00 
 Public Services – Facilities Management $225,000.00 
 Program Income – Facilities Management $0.00 
 Public Services – Facilities Maintenance $173,000.00 
 Program Income – Facilities Maintenance $0.00 
 Public Services – Food Services $51,000.00 
 Program Income  $0.00   
 TOTAL REQUESTED FROM CDBG $1,902,066.00  
  



SECTION 2: 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore has determined that federal Citizen Participation 
requirements were met during the development of this application. 

SECTION 3: 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore has determined that a cash match is not applicable 
for this application. 

SECTION 4: 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore hereby acknowledges that there will be no 
Program Income used in this grant application. 

SECTION 5: 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager 
to sign this application and act on the City's behalf in all matters pertaining to this 
application. 

SECTION 6: 

If the application is approved, the City Manager is authorized to enter into and sign the 
grant agreement and any subsequent amendments with the State of California for the 
purposes of this grant. 

SECTION 7: 

If the application is approved, the City Manager is authorized to sign Funds Requests and 
other required reporting forms. 

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
held on the 1st day of April, 2014, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 



CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )   ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify that 
Resolution No. 2014-08 of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and 
adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held on April 1, 2014. 
 
DATED:  April 1, 2014 
      __________________________________ 
      Mary J. Venegas 

City Clerk  
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public 
Works/Planning 

Date: March 26, 2014  

Subject: Bid Award – Landscape Maintenance of Public Facilities 
Maintenance Districts (PFMD) and Lighting and Landscaping 
Maintenance Districts (LLMD) 

 

 
Discussion: 
Staff accepted bids for the maintenance of the PFMD zones and LLMD zones.  Six bids were 
received. The zones were bid into three different packages as follows: 
 
Bid Packet One 
 PFMD Zone 2 – Davante/Lennar 
 LLMD Zone 3 – Silva Estates 
 LLMD Zone 6 – Capistrano 
 LLMD Zone 7 – Silverado 
 LLMD Zone 8 – Country Club Villas 
 LLMD Zone 11 – Self Help Enterprises 
 
Bid Packet Two 
 PFMD Zone 3 – Silva Estates No. 10 
 LLMD Zones 1 & 2 – Westfield 
 
Bid Packet Three 
 PFMD Zone 1 – The Landing 
 PFMD Zone 4 – Parkview Estates 
 PFMD Zone 5 – East Village 
 LLMD Zone 5 – Wildflower 
 LLMD Zone 9 – La Dante 
 LLMD Zones 10 & 12 – Avalon/Summerwind 
 LLMD Zone 13 – Covington 
 
The following bids were received: 
 
Bid Packet One 

EMTS, Inc     $  52,836 
Clean Cut Landscape   $  60,002 
Primow Landscape   $  92,925 
Shinen Landscape   $101,860 
Westscapes Inc    $106,900 

 



“In God We Trust” 

Bid Packet Two 
Primow Landscape   $56,000 
Perfect Care Landscape  $76,968 
EMTS Inc     $79,968 
Westscapes Inc    $89,200 
Clean Cut Landscape         $94,562 

 
Bid Packet Three 

Clean Cut Landscape         $  90,762 
EMTS Inc     $101,388 
Shinen Landscape   $117,000 
Primow      $118,350 
Westscapes Inc    $139,150 

  
Budget Impact: 
 
The following shows the City’s cost estimate and the low bid amount received: 
 
Contract                                       Cost Estimate                      Contract Amount 
Bid Packet 1                            $123,900                                  $52,836 
Bid Packet 2                                  $  70,000                                  $56,000 
Bid Packet 3                                  $157,800                                  $90,762 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that; 
 
The City award two year contracts (See attached) to each of the low bidders beginning on May 1, 
2014. 
 
Bid Packet 1, consisting of PFMD Zone 2 (Davante and Lennar), LLMD Zone 3 (Silva Estates), 
LLMD Zone 6 (Capistrano), LLMD Zone 7 (Silverado), LLMD Zone 8 (Country Club), and LLMD 
Zone 11 (Self Help) be awarded to Elite Maintenance & Tree Service, Inc. (EMTS) in the amount 
of $52,836. 
 
Bid Packet 2, consisting of PFMD Zone 3 (Silva Estates 10) and LLMD Zones 1 and 2 (Westfield), 
be awarded to Primow Landscape in the amount of $56,000. 
 
Bid Packet 3, consisting of PFMD Zone 1 (The Landing), PFMD Zone 4 (Parkview Estates), 
PFMD Zone 5 (East Village), LLMD Zone 5 (Wildflower), LLMD Zone 9 (La Dante), LLMD Zones 
10 & 12 (Avalon/Summerwind), and LLMD Zone 13 (Covington) be awarded to Clean Cut 
Landscape in the amount of $90,762.  
 
Council, by motion, authorize the City Manager to sign the agreements.                                                               
 
 









































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6744 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-2 
To: City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Public Works/Planning Director 

Date: March 26, 2014  

Subject: Industrial Water Rate Study  

 
Discussion: 
 
Sewer rates were adjusted for residential and commercial customers in 2007; however, 
industrial rates were not adjusted at that time. The treatment of industrial wastewater 
has changed and costs now need to be re-evaluated. As the wastewater discharge 
permit is updated, we need to show that residential, commercial and industrial rates 
have been properly evaluated to ensure all sectors are paying their fair share. 
 
Staff has discussed the need to re-evaluate wastewater processing costs with our 
industrial customers.  They are aware that costs must reflect their wastewater loadings 
and volumes. The intent of this study is to evaluate the flows and loadings of each 
industrial customer and to provide equitable costs for services. 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Industrial Rate Study and Set Fee Schedule:  $8,000 from Sewer funds. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Council, by motion, authorize the Industrial Rate Study in an amount not to exceed 
$8,000. 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public 
Works/Planning 

Date: March 27, 2014  

Subject: Water Conservation Measures  

 
Discussion: 
The City Council has requested recommendations for a tiered response to both encourage 
and ensure water conservation in the future.  Although California has faced drought conditions 
before, the record low rainfall in 2013-2014 coupled with the alarmingly low Sierra snowpack 
levels necessitates measures beyond those taken in the past.  
 
During the City Council meeting, the City Council was informed by the Public Works Director 
that the City adopted a Municipal Code which sets several measures to minimize excessive 
water usage.  The following proposed response plan assumes these measures to be the 
baseline of residential and commercial water usage. 
 
VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCE 
In order to engage both residential and commercial customers in the conservation of water, 
the first step in the City’s conservation plan is to inform the public of the pressing need to 
conserve water.  This can be done through information and education measures, which can 
directly affect water-use habits of the City’s customer base.  While education alone may not 
produce sustained water savings like other measures, it can enhance the effectiveness of 
other measures.  Generally, when utility customers are informed and involved, they are more 
likely to support a utility’s conservation planning goals.  Water bill inserts, pamphlets upon 
request, partnering with local schools to encourage water conservation practices, creating 
workshops for local plumbers, plumbing fixture suppliers, and builders or landscape and 
irrigation service providers are all examples of education and information measures the City 
can implement.  The goal of this measure is to have residents and businesses voluntarily 
comply with best practice water conservation measures, with the goal of reducing average 
water consumption by 20%. Water tanks and wells will be monitored by the Water 
Department. 
 
Additionally, landscape watering for municipal parks will be reduced from six to four days or 
less per week. 
 
LEVEL I 
When pumping water levels drop 20% from the April 15 levels, the City Council may adopt 
stronger measures to facilitate water conservation in the community.  Water conservation 
measures within Level I would restrict: 



“In God We Trust” 

 The number of days for landscape watering to two days per week, depending upon 
the type of irrigation and the address.  Even numbered addresses would be allowed 
to water on Tuesday and Saturday while odd numbered addresses would water on 
Wednesday and Sunday. No watering would be allowed on Monday, Thursday or 
Friday. Additionally, landscape watering would only be authorized before 10:00 a.m. 
and after 7:00 p.m. on designated days. 

o Water customers that utilize drip irrigations are exempt from watering day 
restrictions. 

 Water customers are required to repair all detectable leaks within 72 hours of 
discovery. 

 Hotels, restaurants, and bars encouraged to only provide potable water to customers 
upon request 

 Landscape watering for municipal parks to three days or less per week. 
It is recommended that City Council adopt Water Waste Fees for households and businesses 
that violate the watering restrictions. 
 
LEVEL II 
When well water levels drop 50% below the April 15 levels, the City Council may adopt Level 
II drought response measures, which would maintain Level I restrictions, and further restrict 
the following activities: 

 The number of days for landscape watering to one day per week, depending upon the 
type of irrigation and the address.  The City would be divided into three sections: one 
section would be all of the area on the east side of Lemoore Avenue, another section 
would be the area north of Cinnamon Drive from 19 ½ Avenue to Lemoore Avenue 
and the third section would be the area south of Cinnamon Drive from 19 ½ Avenue 
to Lemoore Avenue. Watering between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. is still 
prohibited. 

 The washing of personal vehicles to once per week, only on permitted watering days, 
and only with the use of the required quick-acting positive shut off nozzle. 

 Hotels are encouraged to implement laundry conservation measures by encouraging 
patrons to reuse linens and towels. 

 Landscape watering for municipal parks to two days or less per week. 
 Implement restrictions on Golf Course watering. 

It is recommended that the Water Waste Fees for violations be doubled under Level II 
conditions. 
 
LEVEL III 
If the standing water levels fall to 70%, the next level of drought response would require City 
Council to adopt Level III drought response measures, which would maintain Level II 
restrictions and further restrict the following activities: 

 The hours of authorized watering of landscapes.  Residents and businesses may 
irrigate their landscapes before 8:00 a.m. and after 8:00 p.m. 

 Landscape watering for municipal parks to one day per week. 
 The filling of swimming pools is not authorized. 
 The City shall discontinue washing city vehicles or equipment except for health, safety 

or critical maintenance reasons. 
 Increase restrictions on Golf Course watering. 

It is recommended that Water Waste Fees for violations be tripled under Level III conditions. 
 
In addition to these drought response measures, the City can take additional steps to reduce 
water demand; however, as most of these activities require City funds, it is also recommended 



“In God We Trust” 

that Council determine the amount of money they are willing to allocate for water conservation 
efforts.  These activities include: 

1. Installing water meters at all City Parks and the Golf Course.  Currently, the majority 
of unmetered water in the City is utilized for landscaping of the City Parks and the 
Lemoore Municipal Golf Course.  In order to accurately account for all water used, it 
is recommended that meters be installed on any and all public-use facilities that are 
currently unmetered.  These meters will help provide a proper baseline of current use, 
and can notify Water or Parks personnel when there are leaks in the system.   

2. Establish a meter testing program as meters can be damaged and deteriorate with 
age, thereby providing inaccurate readings which give misleading information making 
leak detection difficult and possibly resulting in lost revenue.  All meters, especially 
older meters, should be tested for accuracy on a regular basis. 

3. Evaluating water rates and adjusting if necessary.  Costing and Pricing are 
conservation strategies because they determine the true value of water and convey 
information about that value, through prices, to water customers.  The City should 
consider whether their current rate structures promote water usage over conservation, 
or vice versa.  The pricing strategy must be consistent with the City of Lemoore’s 
goals. 

4. Water-Use Audits can provide information about how water is used and how usage 
might be reduced through specific conservation strategies.  A water audit should 
identify areas in which overall water use efficiency can be improved through alternative 
technologies or practices, and focus on the largest volume users.  Additionally, audits 
of older homes can be beneficial in terms of identifying and fixing plumbing leaks. 

5. Implement a retrofit program, primarily targeting plumbing fixtures, which can include 
low-flow faucet aerators, low-flow showerheads, leak detection tablets, and 
replacement flapper valves for toilets.  These are often less costly than replacement 
of existing equipment, and can be provided free or at cost to residents and businesses.  
As both industrial and commercial customers have existing fixtures, both can benefit 
from these types of programs as well. 

6. Rebate program to promote water efficient landscaping.  Programs can provide an 
incentive to residents who replace sprinkler systems with drip irrigation, or provide 
incentives to water customers that replace a minimum area of grass with xeriscaping, 
which reduces or eliminates the need for supplemental water for irrigation by 
installation drought-tolerant plants, cacti, and/or decorative rocks.   

7. Replace grass and high water-use portions of parkways, medians, and/or park space 
with xeriscaping or artificial turf and capping the associated irrigating systems. 

 
 
Budget Impact: 
None at this time. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That City Council, by motion, direct the City Manager to draft an Ordinance related to Drought 
Response Measures.  Additionally, Council should discuss whether they are partial to 
allocating funds towards the additional steps mentioned above. 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 Public Works 
Department 

 
711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public 
Works/Planning 

Date: March 27, 2014  

Subject: Acceptance of Cinnamon Drive Canal Study Final Design Concept 
– Resolution 2014-09 

 

 
Discussion: 
The final design concept report for the Cinnamon Drive Canal Study has been 
completed by Blair, Church and Flynn Consulting Engineers.  The project included 
street and irrigation pipeline improvements at the Cinnamon Municipal Complex. 
 
This study was authorized by Council in Resolution 2011-37 on September 6, 2011 and 
provides for the design of street improvement completion on the south side of West 
Cinnamon Drive from Hill Street to the Lemoore Youth Sports Complex.  The project 
involved the community’s input on the design of improvements across the frontage of 
the Cinnamon Municipal Complex.  Three public information meetings were held to 
receive comments and input on three design options. 
 
All comments received were incorporated into the attached document prepared by Blair, 
Church and Flynn which is also being submitted to the Department of Transportation for 
final reimbursement.  This design was helpful in the coordination of our solar parking 
facility currently under construction.  Staff will use this document to assist with the 
acquisition of grant funding to complete improvements in this area. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Total grant reimbursement in the amount of $83,230 from the State of California 
Department of Transportation. 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council, by motion, accept the final design concept for the Cinnamon Drive Canal 
Study and authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution 2014-09. 
 
 
 



451 Clovis Ave., Suite 200
Clovis, California  93612

Tel (559) 326-1400
Fax (559) 326-1500

www.bcf-engr.com

Prepared for:

City of Lemoore

Design Report
for Street and Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at

Cinnamon Municipal Complex

March, 2014



Prepared by:

Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting Engineers

Prepared for:

City of Lemoore

Design Report for Street and Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at

Cinnamon Municipal Complex

March, 2014



Table of Contents
o Section 1 - Introduction

o Section 2 - Determination of Design Objectives

o Section 3 - Formation of Design Alternatives

o Section 4 - Description of Design Alternatives

o Section 5 - Collection of Public Comments

o Section 6 - Selection of Preferred Design Alternative

o Section 7 - Development of Final Design Concept

o Section 8 - Conclusion

Appendices 
1. Design Alternative A

2. Design Alternative B

3. Design Alternative C

4. Final Design Concept

5. Community Workshop Flyer

6. Community Workshop Sign-in Sheet and Voting Results

7. Request for Proposal/Scope of Work

Design Report
for Street and Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at

Cinnamon Municipal Complex

March, 2014



 Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting Engineers Page 1 of 4 

 

DESIGN REPORT 
STREET AND IRRIGATION PIPELINE IMPROVEMENTS 

AT CINNAMON MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

The design of the Street and Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at the Cinnamon Municipal Complex was 
performed in accordance with the Scope of Work included in the Request for Proposal issued by City of 
Lemoore during the Engineering Design Consultant selection process. This Scope of Work follows the 
guidelines required for projects funded by the Caltrans Transportation Enhancement Activities (TEA) 
program. This report describes the efforts that were taken in determining the final design concept for 
the project and documents the performance of the Tasks outlined by the Scope of Work.  

2. DETERMINATION OF DESIGN OBJECTIVES  

The first order of work performed by our office consisted of collecting topographic survey of the project 
site and requesting as-built utility records from the appropriate utility companies. After a base map was 
created from the topographic survey and utility records, our office began developing three unique 
design alternatives based on the criteria determined internally by City of Lemoore as part of Task 1.2.  
Additional meetings were held with City of Lemoore staff to establish specific design requirements and 
limitations in accordance with Tasks 2.6 and 3.1. Based on these meetings, the primary design objectives 
for the project were determined to include: 

1. Create Class II Bikeways, sidewalk and landscaping to improve the function and aesthetics of 
the site in accordance with Caltrans requirements for TEA Funding   

2. Create parking and bus drop off areas on the South side of Cinnamon Drive for use by 
Recreation Center visitors 

3. Create a safe pedestrian crossing at Liberty Drive 

4. Place the existing irrigation canal on the South side of Cinnamon Drive underground to allow 
for the widening of Cinnamon Drive and construction of Class II Bikeways, curb, gutter, 
sidewalk and landscaping 

3. FORMATION OF DESIGN ALTERNATIVES 

In accordance with Task 3.2, our office assembled diagrams for three unique design alternatives that 
satisfied the Design Objectives. The three design alternatives all shared a common street layout that 
consisted of 5 foot wide Class II Bikeways on the north and south sides of Cinnamon Drive, one 13 foot 
vehicular travel lane in each direction, a single 12 foot wide dual turn lane and an 8 foot wide parking 
lane/bus drop-off on the south side of Cinnamon Drive. This street layout complies with the Master Plan 
width of Cinnamon Drive and allows for connection to the existing curb and gutter at the east and west 
ends of the project. 



 Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting Engineers Page 2 of 4 

 

Sidewalk layout, landscaping, decorative concrete features and signage/signalization at the Liberty Drive 
pedestrian crossing were all varied between the design alternatives in order to provide a wide range of 
options for public comment. The three design alternatives presented to the public are described in the 
following section.   

4. DESCRIPTION OF DESIGN ALTERNATIVES 

Alternative A 

Design Alternative A included a straight 6 foot wide sidewalk and a 7 foot wide landscaped parkstrip 
between the curb and sidewalk. A 10 foot wide pedestrian crossing at Liberty Drive was shown with 
standard ‘Pedestrian Crossing’ signs. Landscaping was shown as shrubs and bushes with trees behind 
the back of sidewalk. A diagram of Design Alternative A is included in Appendix 1. 

Alternative B 

Design Alternative B included a straight 6 foot wide sidewalk and a 7 foot wide landscaped parkstrip 
between the curb and sidewalk. A decorative semi-circle seating wall and planter was added near the 
Liberty Drive crosswalk. Curb returns were modified from the City of Lemoore Standard Drawings to 
include a decorative semi-circle at the back of walk. ‘Pedestrian Crossing’ signs with integrated flashing 
lights were shown at the 10 foot wide pedestrian crossing at Liberty Drive. Landscaping was shown as 
shrubs and bushes with trees behind the back of sidewalk. A diagram of Design Alternative B is included 
in Appendix 2. 

Alternative C 

Design Alternative C included a curved 6 foot wide sidewalk and a landscaped parkstrip of varying width 
between the curb and sidewalk. A circular seat wall and planter resembling a traffic roundabout were 
added behind the Liberty Drive crosswalk. ‘Pedestrian Crossing’ signs with integrated flashing lights and 
in-road flashing lights were shown at the 10 foot wide pedestrian crossing at Liberty Drive. Landscaping 
was shown as shrubs and bushes with trees behind the back of sidewalk. A diagram of Design 
Alternative C is included in Appendix 3. 

5. COLLECTION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The three Design Alternatives were presented to the public in two separate community workshops on 
November 8, 2012 at the Cinnamon Municipal Complex, in accordance with Tasks 2.4 and 2.5. A flyer 
publicizing the workshops was assembled by our office in accordance with Task 2.1, and was placed on 
the City of Lemoore website and distributed by City of Lemoore per Tasks 2.2 and 2.3. The flyer is 
included in Appendix 5. 

Poster boards with diagrams of the three Design Alternatives were presented to the public by our office 
in a series of small-group meetings, spread over two separate 60 minute periods in the morning and 
evening. Since the number of people in each group was small it gave us an opportunity to describe the 



 Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting Engineers Page 3 of 4 

 

Design Alternatives in depth to the attendees, answer whatever questions they had and listen to their 
suggestions. Following our presentation of the Design Alternatives the attendees were asked to vote for 
the designs that they liked best. A sign-in sheet with the names of the attendees and a tally sheet of the 
vote are included in Appendix 6.    

6. SELECTION OF PREFERRED DESIGN ALTERNATIVE 

The attendees of the two community workshops clearly preferred Design Alternative C with the curved 
sidewalk, roundabout-style planter and in-ground flashing lights over the other two Design Alternatives. 
A small number of people preferred the semi-circle planter shown in Alternative B over the roundabout, 
but not a single person preferred the layout shown in Alternative A. The most common input that was 
received from the workshop attendees was that they wanted some sort of flashing light to draw 
attention to the pedestrian crossing. 

7. DEVELOPMENT OF FINAL DESIGN CONCEPT 

Based on the overwhelming preference for Design Alternative C, our office began coordination with the 
City of Lemoore to determine the Final Design Concept. During this coordination it was determined that 
there would need to be several revisions to the preliminary Alternative C layout in order to 
accommodate the needs of the neighboring property owners and the City maintenance forces. 

Due to the location of existing right-of-way limits east of the Cinnamon Municipal Complex (CMC), the 
construction of a curved sidewalk as shown on the Design Alternative C diagram would require the 
purchase or easement of a substantial amount of property from the property owner east of the CMC. It 
was determined that the curved sidewalk could also negatively affect the function of the existing 
driveways belonging to the property owner. Considering these issues, the City made the decision to use 
a 6 foot wide straight sidewalk with a 7 foot wide parkstrip between the eastern edge of the CMC 
frontage and Hill Street. This would allow for the majority of the project to still use the curved sidewalk 
that was preferred by the public, while minimizing right-of-way purchase and avoiding negative effects 
to the neighboring property. 

The property owner to the west of the CMC was concerned about how the construction of new curb and 
gutter would affect his plans to add a second drive entrance to his property. In response, the City 
decided to incorporate a second drive entrance slightly west of the Liberty Drive intersection. 

The City of Lemoore Recreation Department expressed concern that the roundabout planter near the 
Liberty Drive pedestrian crossing could become an unwanted gathering point for people. Due to the 
possible negative effects that this would have on pedestrian safety and maintenance operations, the 
City decided to remove the seat wall and make the planter flush with the sidewalk. By doing this, the 
likelihood for the area to become a gathering point was reduced. It was also decided that the 
roundabout should be moved towards the east to be centered between two drive entrances for 
aesthetic reasons. 



 Blair, Church & Flynn Consulting Engineers Page 4 of 4 

 

During the community workshops it became clear that most of the attendees wanted to have flashing 
pedestrian signalization at the Liberty Drive crosswalk. City of Lemoore had previously installed in-road 
flashers similar to those shown on the Design Alternative C diagram, and were having significant 
problems maintaining them. In consideration of these maintenance issues, the City decided to use 
flashing pole mounted pedestrian crossing signs instead. These signs would be placed on each side of 
Cinnamon Drive and provide a highly visible warning for drivers to yield to pedestrians. 

After considering the comments received during the community workshops and the additional design 
modifications proposed by the City, a Draft Final Design Concept was assembled. This draft was 
presented a third and final time to the public in accordance with Task 3.6. A flyer and sign-in sheet for 
this meeting are included in Appendices 5 and 6, respectively.   

Following the final community workshop, our office adapted the Draft Final Concept to arrive at a Final 
Design Concept. This Final Design Concept incorporates the input that we received at the community 
workshops and addresses the design issues that became apparent during our coordination with the City. 
A diagram of the Final Design Concept is included in Appendix 4.         

8. CONCLUSION 

The creation of the Final Design concept for the Street and Irrigation Pipeline Improvements at 
Cinnamon Municipal Complex was performed in accordance with the Scope of Work included in the 
Request for Proposal. The design is in compliance with requirements for Caltrans TEA funded projects, 
was based on input from the public and satisfies the Design Objectives determined by the City of 
Lemoore.   

       

 

 

 



A P P E N D I C E S



A LT E R N AT I V E  D E S I G N  A





A LT E R N AT I V E  D E S I G N  B





A LT E R N AT I V E  D E S I G N  C





F I N A L  D E S I G N  C O N C E P T





COMMUNITY WORKSHOP FLYER



The public is invited to discuss future construction on Cinnamon Drive between 

Liberty Drive and Hill Street. Possible design options will be presented and public 

input will be collected.

The scope of work includes: underground piping of canal, installation of curb, 

gutter, sidewalk, bike lane and construction of new entrance and parking facilities 

to serve the Cinnamon Municipal Complex.

CINNAMON
DRIVE
CANAL
PROJECT

COMMUNITY
MEETING

Date:  THURSDAY - NOVEMBER 8, 2012
Time:  10:30 - 11:30 a.m. & 6:30 - 7:30 p.m.
Location:  Cinnamon Municipal Complex, Recreation Area
 711 West Cinnamon Drive, Lemoore CA 93245

For more information, please contact Lauren Apone at (559) 924-6734 or email lapone@lemoore.com





COMMUNITY WORKSHOP
SIGN-IN SHEET AND VOTING RESULTS











REqUEST FOR PROPOSAL/
SCOPE OF WORK



1

CITY OF LEMOORE 
NOTICE FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

The City of Lemoore is inviting consultants to submit a Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) for: 

Cinnamon Drive Canal Project 

SOQ's will be for the design of relocating the canal along Cinnamon Drive, from Liberty Drive 
to Hill Street, underground, installing curb, gutter, sidewalk, and bike lane above the canal, and 
designing a new entrance, drainage, and parking lot expansion for the Cinnamon Municipal 
Complex, located adjacent to the canal.  The selected consulting firm will provide a licensed 
architect or professional engineer to be in charge of overall design.

Required experience: design of similar projects and experience with Caltrans bidding 
requirements and TE project funding. 

For the proposed location, NEPA and CEQA work have NOT been completed. 

SOQ Submittal Requirements: 

In order to be considered, submit five complete sets of the SOQ to Lauren Apone at City of 
Lemoore no later than 2:00 PM on Friday, May 4, 2012 to the address below.  Any materials 
submitted after than time will not be considered.   

City of Lemoore 
Attn:  Lauren Apone 

711 West Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore, CA 93245 

The complete Request for Qualifications, along with any questions, can be obtained and 
answered by Lauren Apone at the City of Lemoore at 559-924-6734 or lapone@lemoore.com. 

Publish:  April 12, 2012 



2

Introduction:

The City of Lemoore is looking to obtain professional services for the design of plans and 
construction contract documents for a canal undergrounding and curb, gutter, sidewalk, and 
bike lane installation along Cinnamon Drive and accompanied parking lot expansion and 
additional entrance to 711 West Cinnamon Drive. 

This project involves designing the relocation of approximately 1200 feet of open canal/ditch 
underground and constructing curb, gutter, sidewalk, and bike lane on the south side of 
Cinnamon Drive between Liberty Drive and Hill Street.  In addition, the project involves 
designing the parking lot expansion of the Cinnamon Municipal Complex to include an 
additional approximately 150-175 spaces at 711 West Cinnamon Drive, directly adjacent to the 
canal, and adding a new entrance to the facility. 

A site visit may be scheduled upon request by contacting Lauren Apone at the City of Lemoore 
at 559-924-6734 or lapone@lemoore.com.

Project Information

Location – The project along West Cinnamon Drive in Lemoore, CA. 

Funding – The funding for the engineering phase of this project is provided through a 
Community Based Transportation Planning (CBTP) Grant.  The canal relocation and 
installation of curb, gutter, sidewalk, and bike lane will be funded through Transportation 
Enhancement (TE) Funding administered through Caltrans in the amount of $419,000.  The 
parking lot expansion will be paid out of Redevelopment Bond Proceeds and has a budget of 
$460,395.  Both funding sources require prevailing wage and the two projects may be bid 
together.

Time Frame – Once the City of Lemoore awards the design contract, the City needs bid-ready 
specifications within 12 months time. 

Right of Way – The Consultant’s scope of work does not include right of way work.

Environmental Documents - Environmental documents have not been completed 

Scope of Services:

The Consultant will work in concert with the City of Lemoore, Lemoore Canal and Irrigation 
Company, and interested stakeholders as well as the general public to develop the design and 
construction documents, assist in soliciting construction bid proposals, and work with the City 
and Contractor during construction.  Please note that since the engineering work is being paid 
for by a Community Based Transportation Planning Grant, additional requirements, such as 
holding public meetings, must be met. Details are included in Attachment 1. 

In general, the work will include: 

• Review existing conditions 
• Provide concept design services to determine layout and configuration 



3

• Advertise and hold public meetings with interested stakeholders 
• Prepare schematic design for project based on City and public input 
• Refine site layout and coordinate with City review agencies to confirm compliance with 

current regulations for grading, storm drainage/retention, utilities, and paving. 
• Prepare design development and final construction documents for bidding a complete 

project.  Cover sheet of plans and specifications shall be signed and stamped by a person 
in responsible charge and shall be a registered professional engineer licensed to practice in 
the State of California. 

• Facilitate review and approval of construction drawings and specifications by City of 
Lemoore Planning Department, Public Works Department, and Fire Department. 

• Assist during the bidding phase, e.g., preparation of addenda, response to RFIs, and 
evaluation of bids. 

• Provide Construction Phase administration services and assist the City in verification of 
compliance with approved drawings and specifications. 

Statement of Qualifications Content

Each SOQ shall be accompanied with a cover letter that is signed by an individual authorized 
to commit the firm to the project.  The cover letter shall also provide the following:  name, title, 
e-mail address, and telephone number of individuals with the authority to negotiate and 
contractually bind the company. 

The SOQ shall include at least the following content: 

1. Firm name and contract information 
2. Organizational chart for project showing personnel and sub-consultants 
3. Key personnel, including sub-consultants, who will work on the project with their 

education, credentials, and relevant experience 
4. Name, address, and phone number of sub-consultants 
5. Cost to provide engineering services, broken down into: 

a. Preliminary design and public input phase 
b. Construction document phase 
c. Advertise and bidding phase 
d. Construction phase 

6. Evidence to demonstrate experience of design of similar projects.  For each project, list: 
a. Name and date of project 
b. Location 
c. Cost of construction for project 
d. Scope of project 
e. Name, address, and telephone number of current customer contact 

Page limit: 30, including cover letter (not including cover or tab-separating pages that have no 
text or graphics).  An SOQ with more than 30 pages may be deemed non-responsive and not 
considered.

Selection Process:

A consultant selection committee will evaluate the proposals and determine the rank order of 
firms.  Evaluation of proposals will be on the basis of materials submitted, as well as contact 
with past clients. 



4

The committee will use the following criteria to evaluate the proposals: 
 Extent of experience with similar projects   40 points 

Proposed Engineering Costs     30 points 
Experience with Caltrans on federally funded projects  20 points 
Satisfaction of past Clients      10 points 

The City of Lemoore reserves the right to reject any and all proposals.

Fee Determination:
The final compensation amount for consultant services will be negotiated with the highest 
ranked firm after the selection process is completed and after agreeing to the final scope of 
work.  In the event that negotiations fail with this firm, the City of Lemoore will terminate the 
negotiations and commence negotiations with the next highest ranked firm.  This process shall 
continue until an agreement is reached on a fair and equitable fee. 

Attachments:
Attachment 1 is the Scope of Work outlining the requirements of the Community Based 
Transportation Planning Grant, which is funding the engineering for this project.  Attachment 2 
shows a preliminary drawing of the proposed parking lot expansion. 

Contact Information:

Lauren Apone 
City of Lemoore
559-924-6734
lapone@lemoore.com



5

Attachment 1

SCOPE OF WORK: Cinnamon Drive Canal Study 

INTRODUCTION:

OVERALL SCOPE PRODUCTS/OBJECTIVES  

1. Task Title: Project Contracting 

Task 1.1 Project initiation / kick-off meeting – City staff will meet with Caltrans to go over grant 
procedures and overall project expectations. 

Task 1.2 Staff coordination – coordination among various City departments to determine 
the needs of the project and how to best meet those needs.

Task 1.3  RFP for consultant selection – City staff will solicit proposals for qualified 
consultants to perform the planning work. 

Task Deliverable Documentation
1.1 Initiation meeting Attendance sheet 
1.2 Staff meeting Attendance sheet 
1.3 Consultant contract Copy of contract 

2. Task Title: Public Outreach  
Task 2.1 Design flyer to announce workshops – Planning consultant will design/develop a 

flyer to publicize the community workshops. The flyer will be reproducible for 
distribution and mailing and will be available in English and Spanish. 

Task 2.2 Add project page to City website – City employee will add link to side menu of The 
City of Lemoore website. The link will connect to a page with information about 
the community workshops. 

Task 2.3 Distribute flyers by mail and hand – The flyer developed in task 2.1 will be mailed 
out in monthly utility bills. Flyers will also be distributed by hand to locations 
throughout town, including Lemoore City Hall, Lemoore Public Library, City 
information kiosks, and restaurants and businesses throughout Lemoore. 

Task 2.4 Community workshop #1 – Community will be invited to attend this community 
workshop with the selected consultant and City staff to brainstorm ideas for the 
project.

Task 2.5 Community workshop #2 – Consultant, after receiving input from the first 
community workshop, will prepare a presentation for the project and present to 
interested stakeholders and solicit input on any potential changes. 

Task 2.6 Joint planning/parking & safety/bicycle advisory commission meeting 

Task Deliverable Documentation
2.1 Delivery to City Finished flyer 
2.2 Working link to project page Page accessible online 
2.3 Distribution list Distribution list 
2.4 Workshop summary Attendance sheet 
2.5 Workshop summary Attendance sheet 

2.6

Joint planning/parking & 
safety/bicycle advisory 
commission meeting Attendance sheet 

3. Task Title: Streetscape Concept 



6

Task 3.1 Develop streetscape concept – Consultant will develop the streetscape concept 
based on input from Lemoore Community Garden Group/ 

Task 3.2 Develop design concept alternative – Alternative design concepts will be 
developed by the consultant for consideration by the City Council. 

Task 3.3 Draft final design concept & report – Consultant will draft the final design concept 
for this project for staff comments. 

Task 3.4 Submit draft and final reports/plans for Caltrans review and approval – Staff will 
submit drafts to Caltrans 

Task 3.5  Final design concepts & reports – Consultant will take direction from staff from 
Task 3.3 and make any applicable changes to the final design concept and report. 

Task 3.6 Community workshop #3 – Consultant will present final design concept and 
reports for any interested parties at this third and last community workshop. 
Consultant will deliver final written documents and concept drawings of project. 

Task 3.7 City council adoption – Staff and Consultant will present final design concept and 
report to the Lemoore City Council for adoption. 

Task Deliverable Documentation
3.1 Develop streetscape concept Delivery to City 

3.2
Develop Design Concept 
Alternatives Delivery to City 

3.3
Draft Final Design Concept and 
Report Delivery to City 

3.4
Draft Final Design Concept and 
Report Delivery to Caltrans 

3.5
Final Design Concept and 
Report Summary of changes, delivery to City 

3.6 Workshop summary Final written and printed documents 

3.7
Council Resolution/Meeting 
Minutes Copy of resolution/minutes 

4. Task Title: Project Administration 
Task 4.1 Project administration – Staff will prepare monthly reports to Caltrans to keep the 

project manager current on what has taken place in the prior month. 
Task 4.2 Submit info for quarterly reports – Quarterly reports and invoices will be submitted 

to Caltrans for reimbursement. 

Task Deliverable Documentation

4.1
Project administration and 
coordination 

Monthly reports 

4.2 Quarterly Reports Copy of reports 



7

Attachment 2





RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
ADOPTING FINAL CONCEPTUAL DESIGN FOR THE  

CINNAMON DRIVE CANAL STUDY 
 
 

 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore, duly called and held on 
April 1, 2014 at 7:30 p.m., it was moved by Councilmember _________________, and 
seconded by Councilmember _________________, and duly carried that the following 
resolution be adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lemoore was awarded a grant for Community Based 
Transportation Planning through the California Department of Transportation for the Cinnamon 
Drive Canal Study; and  
 
 WHEREAS, three Community Workshops were held on two separate dates to receive 
input from staff and the public regarding design alternatives; and  
 
 WHEREAS following the final Community Workshop, a Final Design Concept was 
prepared by Blair, Church and Flynn Consulting Engineers and said Concept has been 
submitted to the California Department of Transportation.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
approves and adopts the Final Design Concept prepared by Blair, Church and Flynn 
Consulting Engineers.  
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
held on the 1st day of April, 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      WILLIAM SIEGEL, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 



 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )   ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 
 I, MARY J. VENEGAS, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby certify the 
foregoing Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was passed and adopted at a 
Regular Meeting of the City Council held on the 1st day of April, 2014. 
 
 
Dated: April 1, 2014 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  Office of the

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

              City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

              
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Jeff Laws, City Manager  

Date: March 27, 2014 

Subject:       Activity Update 
 
 
Trip Reports 
 
 Avelar – ICI Child Abuse Training 

 Venegas – TTC Series 300 Training 

 

Letters 

 Downtown Merchants Association Letter 

 Lemoore Senior Center Support Letters 

 
 







“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Clerk 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Janie Venegas, City Clerk 

Date: March 26, 2014   

Subject: Technical Training for Clerks – Series 300  

 
I had the opportunity to attend Technical Training for Clerks (TTC), Series 300 at the 
University of Riverside Extension Center March 11-14, 2014.  Institute Director Maureen 
Kane has served as a TTC instructor since the program was developed by the City 
Clerk Association of California (CCAC) in 2002. 
 
Series 300 was a compilation of ten sessions each presented by several experts in the 
field of topic.  Each session included a vast amount of information presented via Power 
Point and was question and answer oriented.  Students were broken up into groups of 
three to five throughout the series to participate in exercises related to the session topic. 
 
The ten sessions were as follows: 
 301 – The Municipal Clerk as a Manager 
 302 – Meeting Administration 
 303 – Records Management 
 304 – Messaging in Public and Media 
 305 – Supervising Employees 
 306 – General Law 
 307 – Negotiation and Assessment Skills 
 308 – Communication Writing Skills 
 309 – Ethics in Profession 
 310 – Diversity in Organizations 
 
All sessions were extremely informative, however, I took particular interest in three of 
the sessions.  The “Many Hats of the City Clerk” presented in session 301 was 
enlightening.  The City Clerk is not just the City Clerk.  The traditional job expectations 
are true for all agencies whereas the cultural and positional expectations vary.  For 
example, telephone guru may be specific to my position while that particular job duty 
may be an IT specialist in another area. 
 
I also thoroughly enjoyed “Better English in Four Hours – or Less” presented in session 
308.  I have always believed that words are powerful and even more powerful when 
used correctly.  The same is true with punctuation, such as the comma.  For example, 



“In God We Trust” 

“We’re going to learn to cut and paste kids.”  The session was refreshing and at times 
rather comical. 
 
The “Generation Connection” discussed in session 310 provided a handout with core 
attributes of each generation from 1900 to current.  It was enlightening to see the 
variations of attitudes towards authority, time on the job, job relations, technology and 
rewards or incentives.  We had people from each generation and the majority of the 
attributes were correct.  This breakdown of attributes allowed us to recognize how to 
harness the power of each generation. 
 
Overall, this series was extremely informative.  The group interactions were extremely 
beneficial and I was allowed to interact with others in the field of government and gain 
knowledge from their experiences. 
 
I truly appreciate the opportunity to attend this training.   
 
Thank you. 
 
 
 
 


























































































































	Agenda 4-1-14
	Item 2-1 - Minutes 3-18-14
	Item 2-2 - Warrant Register 3-27-14
	AC0401-ETA
	AC0401-GLTA FBC
	AC0401-GLTA
	AC0401-RTA

	Item 2-3 - Pizza Festival
	Item 2-4 - Staff Report - Lemoore Festa Parade 032414
	Item 2-5-1 - Staff Report - Claim for Cutler
	Item 2-5-2 - Claim - Cutler
	Item 2-6-1 - Staff Report - Authorize Bid Slurry Seal 2014
	Item 2-6-2 - Slurry Seal Street Project
	Item 3-1-1 - Staff Report - CDBG Application Submittal Public Hearing 040114
	Item 3-1-2 - Resolution 2014-08 CDBG Application Submittal
	Item 4-1-1 -Staff Report - PFMD & LLMD Bid Award
	Item 4-1-2 - PFMD & LLMD
	Item 4-2 - Staff Report - Industrial Rate Study
	Item 4-3 - Water Conservation Measures
	Item 4-4-1 - Staff Report - Cinnamon Dr Canal
	Item 4-4-2 - Cinnamon Dr Canal Design Rpt
	Item 4-4-3 - Resolution 2014-09 Cinnamon Dr Canal
	Activity Update Memo 4-1-14
	AU-1 - Trip Report - Avelar ICI Child Abuse 3-2014
	AU-2 - Trip Report - Venegas TTC Series 300 3-2014
	AU-3 - DMA Letter 3-20-14
	AU-4 - Senior Support Letters

